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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To The Members of Indus Automotives Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Indus Automotives Private Limited
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), the Statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS financial
statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements " section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
under the provision of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for opinion.

Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report,
but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditors” report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information, and accordingly, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind
AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high-level assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reaspnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management. /
oncern basis of

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s
ncertainty exists

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,



related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls have not been commented upon
in this report.

As the company is a small company/ private company to which exemption notification dated 13,
June 2017 is applicable.




(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
company has not paid remuneration to its directors during the year.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(@)

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

)

The Company has disclosed the possible impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial Statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

The company does not have any dues on account of Investor Education and Protection Fund.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the Notes to accounts, during the year no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.




(vi)  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the respective software. Further, during our audit, we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company
as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For N G C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

- 8 ﬁzi Naw Dethi
uman Biji W\
Partner &\% /
\\__;/‘

Membership No.: 095023
UDIN: 9sed (o2 7 MKk 2@

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of the Company on the Ind AS financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025, we report that:

O]

iii.

(a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company does not own any intangible assets. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and
right-of-use assets so to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, certain property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year and were
physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee),
as disclosed in the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use
assets) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting
on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statements does
not arise.

(a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
Management and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedures of such verification by Management
is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book
records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 5 crores, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed monthly/
quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the books of account,
except for few differences on account of Provisions.

(a)The Company has, during the year, made investments , granted unsecured loans but has not
provided security, or given guarantees to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties.

The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with
respect to such loans, guarantees and securities to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates and to
parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are as per the table given below: -




v,

vi.

vil.

Particulars Guarantees | Loans Investments

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the
year
Subsidiaries - - -
Joint Ventures - -

Associates - - -
Others - 700.00 111.60

Balance outstanding (gross) as at balance sheet
date in respect of the above cases
Subsidiaries - - -

Joint Ventures = = Z
Associates 3 % =
Others - 225243 742.98

(b) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans were granted
are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest, based on the information and explanations provided
by the Company.

(c¢) The borrowers have been regular in the repayment of the principal and payment of interest on
loans where so stipulated unless the arrangement does not contain any such schedule for repayment
of principal/interest.

(d) There are no overdue amounts in respect of the loans granted to companies.

(e) According to the information & explanation provided by the Company, there are no overdue
amounts in respect of the loans granted to companies. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) No loans or advances were granted that are repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans,
investments, guarantees and security made, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public within the meaning of the directions issued by Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules
framed thereunder.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to maintain
the cost records under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Goods
and Services tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and Other Statutory
Dues applicable to it. However, there were few delays in depositing the taxes due, which were later
on deposited along with penal/ compensatory interest.




viii,

iX.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Service
tax, Duty of custom, Duty of excise, Value added tax, Cess and Other Statutory Dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Goods and Service
Tax and Cess which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute except the followings:-

Name of the | Nature of Dues | PERIOD (A.Y.) | Amount involved | Forum where
Statute (Rs. in Lakh) dispute is
pending
Central Goods | Goods and 2018-19 17.06 Commissioner
and Service Tax | Service Tax (Appeal), GST
Act, 2017 & Central
Excise,
Chhattisgarh

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans to banks and NBFC’s during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Willful Defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not applied any term loans during the year.

(d) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year,
the funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes.

(e) The Company has do not hold any in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies,
therefore, this clause is not applicable.

(f) The Company has do not hold any in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies,
therefore, this clause is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially or optionally convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xf the Order is not

applicable to the Company.




xi.

xii.

xiil,

Xiv.

xV.

XVvi.

xvil,

XViii.

XiX.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of
any such case by the Management.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of
the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, no whistle blower complaints have been received by
the Company during the year.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and
188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures™ specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

According to the provisions of section 138 of Companies Act, 2013, Company is not required to
appoint an internal auditor. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (xiv) (a) & (b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting
under Clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group has Two CICs as part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether
the information provided by the management is accurate and complete,

The Company has neither incurred any cash losses in the financial year nor in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting
under Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX, The Company is not required to spent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR).
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For N G C & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 033401N/ N500351

Parduman Biji
Partner
Membership No.: 095023

UDIN: 9o q (a2 YEMK Z

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2025

(Al amounts are in rupees lakh(s), unless otherwise siated)

ASSETS
I Non-currcnt asscts

{a)  Property, plant and equipment

(b)  Financial asscts

(i) Investments

(ii) Trade receivables

(ni} Loans

{iv} Other finuncial assets
(c)  Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(d)  Other Non-Current Assct
Tutal non-current assets

2 Current assets
(@) Tnventories
(h)  Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables

(it} Cash and cash equivalents

{ni} Loans
(c)  Other current assets
Tutal current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a)  Equity sharc capital
(b)  Other equity
Total equity

2  Non-current linbilitles
(a)  Financial linbilities
(i) Borrowings
(b)  Provisions
Total non current liabilities

3 Current liabilities
(a}  Financial liabilities
(i)  Borrowings
(ii)  Trade payable

Due to micro and small enterprises

Due to others

(i1i)  Other financia) liabilities

(b)  Other current liabilities
{e)  Pruvisions
Total current liabilitics

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Background & Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date atlached
For NGC & Assoviates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 03340 [N/NS00351

man Biji
Pariner
Menibership No.: 095023
Place: New Delhi
Date: 27-05- 2025

Note

9~ & W

11
12
13

16
17

18
18
19
20
17

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
86.70 89.98
T42.95 737.10
1,547.33 2,604.76
L 6.17
26,69 3019
160.92 160.00
2,564.62 3,628.20
36.79 41.78
94.77 164.59
27.88 4.08

705.10 -
40.34 49.93
904.88 260.38
3.469.50 3,888.58
52.50 52.50
2,05%.00 199245
2,111.50 2,044.95
568.51 850,34
9.24 10.74
577.75 861.08
287.54 33011
236.93 296,87
24.55 2343
210.23 30894
21,00 23.19
780.25 982,55
3‘462;§ﬂ 3,858.58

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Lyl LKA

Somvir Sindhu

Director Director

DIN: 02291158 DIN: On6R0118



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in rupees lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
I Revenue from operation 21 141.07 161.38
II Other income 22 182.96 211.65
I Total income (I+11) 324.03 373.03
IV Expenses
Purchase of stock in trade 23 85.29 106.73
Change in inventory 24 4,99 1.62
Employee benefit expenses 25 60.96 58.00
Finance cost 26 75.76 73.56
Depreciation 3 3.28 3.84
Other expenses 27 13.79 40.15
Total Expenses 244.07 283.90
Y Profit before tax (11I-1V) 79.96 89.13
VI Tax expense:
-Current tax 19.59 21.29
-Deferred tax charge/(credit) 7 0.99 1.18
20.58 22.47
VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 59.38 66.66
VIII Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
- Change in Fair value of equity instruments through OCI 5.88 -
- Net actuarial gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 4.08 1.80
9.96 1.80
Income tax relating to above items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss (2.51) (0.45)
7.45 1.35
IX' Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) 66.83 68.01
Earning per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 28
(1) Basic 11.31 12.70
(2) Diluted 11.31 12.70
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For NGC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 033401N/N500351
Parduman Biji fabh Sindhu Somvir Sindhu
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 095023 DIN: 02291158 DIN: 06680118

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27-05- 2025



INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounis are in rupees lakh(s), unless othervise stated)

A. Equity share capital

(1) For the year ended 31 March 2025

Balance as on 01 April 2024

Changes in equity share
|capitul during the F.Y, 2024-25

Balance as on 31 March 2025

52.50

52.50

(2) For the year ended 31 March 2024

Balance as on 01 April 2023

Changes in equity share
capifal during the F.Y, 2023-24

Balance a5 on 31 March 2024

32.50

B. Other equity

Particulars Other cquity (refer Note 15) Ttems of other comprehensive income/{loss) Total
Retained earnings Re ement of defined benefit Falr valuation of Luyestment in
shares
(1) For the yeur ended 31 March 2025
Balance as at 01 April 2024 2,038.51 59.25 (105.31) 1,992.45
Profiti(loss) for the year 5938 - - 5938
Add: Other comprehensive income/(loss)
of the year - 305 4.40 745
Less: Adjustment for Advance taxes of
earlier year (0.28) - - (0.28)
Balunce as at 31 March 2025 2,097.61 62.30 {100.91) 2,059,00
(2) For the year ended 31 March 2024
Balance as at 01 April 2023 1,9771.72 57.90 (105.31) 1,930.31
Profit/(loss) for the year 6666 - . 66.66
Add: Other comprehiensive income((loss)
of the year - 135 1.35
Less: Adjustoent for Advance tixes of
carlier year (5.87) - - (5.87)
Balunce as at 31 March 2024 2,038.51 59.25 {105.31) 1,992.45

Retained Eurnings

Retained eamings represent the amaunt of accunulated earnings of the company,

Other Compunents of Equity

Other compuonents of equity consists of remeusurement of net defined benefit liability/ asset, investment valued through other cumprehensive incume.

As per our report of even date attached
For NGC & Assuciates LLP
Chartered Accountunts

Firm Registration No.: 03340 1N/NS0035 ]

Pardiman Biji

Partner

Menbership No.: 095023
Place: New Delhi

Date: 27-05- 2025

“Fur and on behalf of the Board of Direclurs

D
D

irectar

IN: 02291158

Somvir Sindhu
Director

DIN: 06650118

s g2

Saurabh Sindhu




INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts arve in rupees lakh(s), unless otherwise stated)

A) Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustment for :
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance cost
Provision for gratuity
Interest income
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes
Adjustment for :

Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities & other current liability

Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables
Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories

Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/ (Increase) in other non current assets
Decrease/ (Increase) in other current assels
Decrease/ (Increase) in other financial assets
Cash Generated from operations

Taxes paid (net)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A)

B) Cash from investing activities
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Decrease/ (Increase) in loans
Interest income
Net cash used in investing activitics (B)

C) Cash flow from financing activities
Proceed/(Repayment) of long-term and short-term borrowings
Interest paid '
Net cash flow from financing activities (C )

D) Netincrease/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
E) Cashand cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
F) Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

Note:

The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with 'Indicect method" as set outin the Ind AS 7 on

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
79.96 89.13
3.28 3.84
75.76 73.56
2.09 242
(179.73) (208.78)
(18.64) (39.83)
(97.60) (53.61)
(102.51) (57.40)
4.99 1.62
69.82 121.45
(0.92) :
(11.70) (16.02)
6.17 1.00
(150.39) (42.79)
(0.28) (5.87)
(150.67) (48.66)
# 0.60
352.33 (163.16)
179.73 208.78
532.06 46.22
(281.83) 66.20
(75.76) (73.56)
(357.59) (7.36)
23.80 (9.80)
4.08 13.88
27.88 4.08

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014,

As per our report of even date attached
For NGC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registralion No.: 033401N/N500351

‘Cash Flow Statements!, as specified in the

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

urabh Sindhu

Parduman Biji Somvir Sindhu
Partner Direcior Director
Membership No.: 095023 DIN: 02221158 DIN: 06630118

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27-05- 2025




INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Ananclal statemunts for the year ended 31 March 2015
(AN armisonts e st eupees lakiea), wndess ptheraise stated)

by

dy

L]

Compoay informalion

Inshis Aukarnotive Privaic Limiled (the 'Compeny') i 2 Domesiic Private Limiied Company incorporaied in India. The réegistered pffice ol the Comyuany {5 locaied at 129, Trawsport Centre. Rohtak Road, Punjeii
Bagh, Now Delhi-] 10035, nalia.

The Company is oigagad Inthe business of trading of all types of spare pasts, iyres and hibricanis,

Eigmificunt s ceounting policies

Basis for preperation of financial Stak

Compliance with lnd AS

The scparsly fiminotal statuments have bean proparad o comply in all materat arspocts with the Accounting Staiabuds autiffed under Section 133 of Congasiies Act, 2013 {the “Act”) 25 per Companies (ndian
Accounting Standanls flnd AS| Rules, 2015 and ather relovant proviseons of the Act and rules fumed therennder,

Historicul Cost convention
The finucial stutzments bave beon propired on a historivel cost convention 2nd acerl basis, eavupt Jor centain flawicial assess and linbifities messunad at foir value and plan nssets towods defiged beachit
plans, which are measared al (i vilus,

Froperty, plunt aimd euuipent (hclading wapiial work-in-pragress )

Frochol land 3 covivd at histuricil cost. All other {lems of propeity, pliat 2o eguipoat are stiled at historic] cost less depivciation. Historien! eost incles expenditie that is direetly attributnble to the
scaquinition of Lhe lems.

Subsoquuat cost e ireliald i the peset’s cumy g Amonnt ar gz as 2 sepanile osset, a3 apporprinte, only when it is probible that fistire sesnomic benofits msodated with the frem will fow ta the
Curmpany and the oot of the i1em can be meusured refiably. The curying amount ofany cumpunent scaminted for 53 3 seprmie 1553t i derecognised whien repliced. All other repairs and maimenance Expenes are
hiurged to peofil o boss dusing the rpoding period T which thes ar incarmed.

Dipreciativn! Amurtisation
Asseti in the coure of development ar conctructivn and Beciold kind zic st deprociaed.
Other pruperty, plant aod oqupacal 63 slalid 01 el Jo53 aoimeluded depresiation and any provision Rr impairment. Depicciation canmeacss when the gsess aro sty fur their ierdsd wse.

Plepizelation i eaieulatod on the depreceabile amowst, which is the coat of an asset fess s reshdual wahue, Depreciation ie provided at rates caleulated to wilke off the ooty dess estimated resihual valis, of each
masetona wiilien down value bash wver its expected uscfal e fdeterminal by the pamsgement hosed on beclusical Estimatis), 25 Bllows:

The estimatod wselul lives of asvefs are as fullows:

D eli g5 30-60 yponrs
Plant & squipinzny 1540 sears
Fumiture & fixtiues 5-10 years
Vehicles Ge10) yemis
Computers il

sofluares 38 yoars
e equipiens 5 yars

Indivilial iterre off 255065 costing upto Rs. .000 are fully deprecimed in the yesrof soquisitipn.

Majur inspeciion and overhnul costs are deprociated over the cstimated life of the connunnie benclit dorived Bom such coste. The carrying anwunt of the pemaining presious tverhaul cost is chorged to the
atutement of profit and fss iNthe neat sverisul is undestiken carlier than the previvus Ty estimated 1o of the wooumic bendit,

Wihen signilicant spare perts of an item ol propedy, plant asd squipment Jve difercnt usefil lives, they are sccowiied for os upierate ens (magor compoieots) of propenty, plant sad equipment

Dieprociunion metlnds, wefil {ves and residunt vabuss are e dowed ot snch foanciat year ead and changes in estlmates, if any, are sooownied for prospetively,

Liases

The Comgpany has aibigied Ind AS 1186.Leases effective 0] Apil, 2009, using the modilied s pective method The Company has applied the stamband to its leases with the comubative irmgract recognisod with
o impact o eetiine! camings on the date of nitinl app lictin (0] April. 20 &), A fingly, previows peried infurradion Sas ool been tes latod,

The Compuny evaluates each cuntrust or armmngement, whether it ualifies a5 Jeose 35 delined under Iod AS 116 The Con 1panty s a leseoe, 3ssesses. whether the conlnet 15, of containg, 3 leste. & contrel is, ar
coarains, 3 bease i the comract invedsis:

) the ase of s idoitivd wsect,

B the right Lo oblais subs L Tlly all the sconumie benelits Fom se of the fdentified aesat, and

) thee right to dinect the we of the fentifed assut

A the dite of commencement of lease, e Company rcogniscs 1 sight-ofuse 255t ¢ROU™) and 3 curresponding feaie fiability fur all Rease arrangerncrns in which 1 7 o besscr, except for beases with 2 ferm of
twelee mauithy or loss (lwrt term twses) and |eases oT bow value sssets. For these shon term and feases ol law valwe assets. the Company recoynises the leane payroenis 38 10 CPETAling EApense on 1 sleaighlling
basis aver the term o'the fease.

The sight-alusg wssets (it includes prepayment far al) the future riiale) zre iniiially fecegnised a1 cost, which comprices the inilial amaunt of the lesse lability adjusied for any case payments aude at or priot g

the commencement date of the lesse plis amy initial dfircet custs fesi any bease ncentives. Thiy ane subsequently measored at cost less aceumulsted depreciation and impairiet usses. ifany. Right-of-use asset

are dupreciona) fom th it date on 3 steatight-Tine bosls ower the shorter of the lease term and wefil life of the unlerhving assef,

Finunchul fnslroments
A Tincnid [l umcat s any contrct that wives se to @ financial psset in one catity sl o fnanial tisbility er cguity instoanct i amthiee iy,

Fiuoocial avets

Tuitial recognition

Irthe case of fincw i assets, ot recurded al fake volue thiigh profit or fess (FYTPLY, financial sssets are recognised initiafly at fie vilue lus transaciion easts thit are direcily atiriaahi 1 the scquisiion of
the lima ncial 3:5¢t. Putchoses or s5les of financial assets that requie defivery of 25sets within & time (e establishiad by rezidation ar conventivn in the merke! place {regular way trodes| are eevognised on the
triske date, due., tha dat theat the Company comemits o purchise o7 5ell the assce.

Subseyuent messurcment

For p ol sulsejuent me v, financial ussets are chassified In Mollowing categorfes:
L B

(u) Financiul sssets at amortised cost %

Firancial assits arc subsoguently neasircd at kmortised cost il these gl gsets are bekd within o hasiness medel with an ohjective 1o hoid thess sseis i ordar 1o colloct conlroctial cash Buws and the
coniraciual wone of tha fnancial asset give rsc on spociNed dales, 1o cash flows that st slcly paymenis of prineipal and fnderest on the princpal amaumt autsianding, Inbercst mcome fiom these Bnancial asses
is ineluded i e Ticone wing the effective interest site UBIRY) mcthod. lmpai et guins or [esses arisiag on these assets are revegnised in the statcment o7 profit and hoss.

(b Financial assels measured at ffr value

Finanvial 2sseis are measured ot fair value thnogh other cumprehensive income (FVOCT) if these fnancial ssscts are befd witlin a business model with an objociive to hokd these assore in ordar o colipet
cuntruetual cash flows o to sell these fiancial assats 20 the contractiad tenrs of the finneal as501 give rise o0 spovified dales, o cash Buews this are solely puymcnts of priucipal and imesst on the peiiipal
ol auistanding. Movements in the carying amownt are taben thiough OCT, avcept for the recognition of ingainment 2ains of losscs, inierest reverae and forcizn exchunge gains nod bosses which ane
fecugitived in the stiement of profitand hess.

Funaincial assers that do mot meet the criteria far amiised cust or FYOCT ane ncsd at fair value through poofit ae foss.




INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the finunclal stateients for the vear ended 31 March 2025
CAIT v icr e e cugreees akhen), annless ot i Harlied)
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n

Loapuirment of financial assets
Inaceerdance with Ind AS 109, the Coupany applics the expected credit foss {PECL") owdsd for m aund recopiivn of jmg boss on financial asots and cred it risk exposurcs.

The Comypany follows *simpiificd approsch’ for ilion of impai Tons allow Iracde roivables. Simp ified upprosch docs nol neuire the Compaiy 1o tragk chunges in credit risk,

For rocopnition of impairment oss on other Rnancial cssets and rish oxposure, the Company determings whthar 1here by been 2 sigmificant increase in the erevl risk since inftial rcageilion. Tf credil risk has
ol inersased significantly, 1 2-month ECL is msed to povide for impairenent: (g5, However, if credit risk bas incesed sigaifivantly, lifetime BCL is userl IF, in o subsequent perhod, credit quality of the

instrument improves such thal there i no Jusger @ significant mcreasy in eredit disk since initial recugnitiyn, then the entity reverts 1o recugaising impoi lgss all Based on 12-month ECL.

ECL i the diffircae berween all contractual cazh flows tht are due to e Cumpany in accordance with the contract and all the cash Aows that the ity expects 1o reccive (.0, all cash shonfalls), discounted a1
the ariginat FIR, Lilelima ECL are the éxpected crodit losees resulting from all possible defill events ever the expecied life ol a financial instrument. The |Z-menth ECL is a pantion of the Efctime ECL which
wesults. from dofinlt cvents that are possible within 12 meaths nfer the repurting dace,

ECL impairmeni loss allowance for reversal] recoyrised during the poriod i recondd a8 supease’ income in 1he Staicment of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of financial assels

The Cormpauny de-recognises @ finunciol ssset anly when the conrachual gl to the cash fows fom the sssct chpire, or it tarafies the Gk asset and substaitially all risks and rowaeds of vwnership af the
szt o another ety

1£ the Connpany pwithies i flas nor rewing substatinlly all the rivks and rewands of ovaership and contims to control the tmsferned asset, the Company reeoghizee its ntaioed lnterst in the 2550t and an
i 2o liabifity far amoms it may hawe 1o pay

Ifthe Company rctains substuntially oll the risks and rewanls ofisicrsliip o 2 s ferred financiel asset, the Company cuntinues b0 seeognise the fnancial 2sset aad alse magnives a collatemalisod busrowing for
the proceels received

Equity luvestments
All eguity s extonaits in the seape of lad AS 109, Finncil Listuments, me meswed 2t fair valac, For Sty instrimeats, the Compay may make an irevocable eloction (o presenl the subseqmat Sir vatoe
changes in Ouher Compretionsiva Income (CHCH). The Company makas yueh election on an instrumensBy-instnimient bisis, The el Rciion i made on nifial secogition snd s frees ocubbe,

There is oo recyy fing of the smousts m OC] 1o prolil or hesh, even on sale of investiment. "
Eyuity Instrunnts dncliuded willin the v LPL (fir value tiogh peo it and biss) eategory are messired ot e vatue with all ehanges in fiir value veoognized i the profit or Joss.

Fluanelul Bahifities
Ludtfal resopmition

Finanzial abilitics are clasified, at iniial recognition, s Rnancial lisbilities al FVTPL, toass ond borrow ings 2nd pagables as sppropriate. All Baancial Gabiflics are recogniscd initially st fair value and, jn
the cage of s aisd Borron [ogs srd payubles. net of directly attibutable trassction costs,

Subsequent measrement

Financial Habilifies at FVTPL
Furiaacial fiabilities 2t FVIPL inchude fuancial labilities beld for s ding and Saancial lishiiitics designated upen initial revogniiion & FVTPL. Financisl lishifiies are classified s hold for rading 1f thay ase
iniurred fin the purpose of aprurchasing in the ter lerm. Guins o Jusses oa liabilitic eld fou trading are e gnised in the stterit of profit and Toss,

Elawnwinl gramates conlronts ixsinal by the Company ane thise sontrcts that toyuire 3 payimect e be made o elmbucse the hikder for 2 loks it iocws Boguwse the sperifiad dibior fiils to ke a poyment whea
dug in accontance with the s of 2 debt fnsirmament, Financial guaraice comracts e recognised inirially as 2 liabifity af fair valus, adfuuted for transaciion covts that ae directly attributable o the ssuance of
the gusries, Subscquently, the liability ie messwred at the bigher of the oot of loss all Jetermined 3 per imgpal i of Ind AS 109 and the asmunt recognised less tumulative
amantisation. Amanisalion i recognised s Bnance iocome in the siatement of profit and loss,

Finnncial labilifies ut amurtlsed cust

After inifinl secognition, interest-banring loans aid b uigs ane sulceduently messnnad at vsed cost using the EIR method. Ay diffircoce betacan the proseds (mef of Lasaction costs) and the
ol o wikmpiion af | inggt s i dhaver the term of the borrowings in the stacement of profil and oss.,

At cust s caleulated by taking infe 2ecount any discount or preriinm ag acyuisitivn andl foor o costs that ane an inbearal pct of the EIR. The BIR asodization i inchaded s finunce custs- in the statenent

of profit and loss.

De=revugnition of Bnancial labilitios

Fiancinl linbilitios are de-recognised whea the ubligution specificd in the contrtt is dischiuged, cwiecliod or axpired When an existing finuacial liability & repliced by aacther fiom the same lender on
subslandiatly differcad temss, or the terms of n exisiing linbility arc substaniially modificd, sich 2n sxchungs or moxdification is freated o d gition of the original |iability and recognilion of a now lisbility,
The differane in the respective cmplng amounts 1s reeogniscd in the staement of profit and lnss.

Oifsetting Aoancial insiruments
Fitwnicial =017 and Gaoncial liabilites are offet and the net smeun s reported in the halance sheet i there i 4 cumently enfivrceable degal right 1 uffiet the recugnised amwunts and there is an intention to selile
ot et huasis, fo nealise the ssots and sertle the Fabilitics sunulticasly, 2

Fair value measurement

‘Thie Company measures linancial assets and Goinelal Bability at fir valie 11 esch balance sheet dte,

Fatie vnlue: i8 the price that wuid be recelved 10 2oll na ssset or paid o tansfir 2 liability ia 20 onderly section between merker Facticipiats & the measuement date, The Eair value Breusisemsn & hased on
fhe pressunpiion thul the trarsaction bo sl the psset ar wansfee the liobility 1akes plics either,

The privipal gr fhe pust wdviatigeus madet must be accoble by the Compary. The fir valoe of an 2s3et a¢ 2 iability Is sl using the sssumptions that masket paicipats wnld use when pricing the
2sset or finbility, asswening Ihat merket participants act in their econemic best inlerest.

A Tir vales mcsuiument uf 4 oen-foareiol asset tokes into scooumt 3 market Panticipant’s ability 10 goncric cooncmic bonelits By wsing 1he 25301 In s highest and bt use or by sclling 1t o aoether market
participan et woulil use the naset in its highest amd best use. The Compamy wses ahiation kechniques that are approgpiane in e ciroumstances med far which sulliciont dats are availahle to mosie fir vale,
imusimiaing the use of relevan! observable inputs and wninimising the use of urobserable inpuls.

All bzscts and Fihilitics for which Fair value is messurd ot discloscd in the Fucial st ane cutegurised within the fair value hicrarchy, deseribed o5 follows, based on the fowest level input et 15
sigmificant to the Rir value messwcnwnl os 3 whale:

Level |- Quaical funadjustenl} miacker prices in active markcts for identical asseis of Nabiliifes,

Level 2= Valuntion tochnigues for which the hewes: level input that fs significunt to the fair value reasanert i directly o indireatly dhacrvable,

Level 3 - Valuzlion toehaiques for which the lowest Jevel input that is igni focant {o the fir value I8 timobscrvable. For assots ani fiabilitics that are racognised in the fnancial sisterens ona
fecurring basis, the Cutipany dutenning whether trisfins Fave weurred betwoen lovels in the Rierrchy by reeassesslig calegorisation {hased on the lowest level inpat that is signiGeam 1o the fiir volue
meas urermieni a5 3 whake) at the end of cach sepocting period.

e Cormpany s Valuation twam deternines the policics and procedures for Soth nectming il value siach as dari
UG LTI MRS UMM,

i il il wsssts measured ar fair valie, and for sane

Toventories

Consunubles. stores aid sparcs ane valoed 22 lower of cost and net realisable valug: oo js vt o firstein-fest out basis: The cost of invertics compriss all conls of purchinse and other costs ncamed in
brinzing the insentorics 19 heir preseat location and condition. Obsslste, defielive, unservicestls and showfon-nuring stocks are duly peovided for. Nel realisable valus is estinted solling price in ordinary
comrsee nfhusiies less the estimaied cost nevessary o make the szle.

Cash snd cash equivelonty

I the cash fow stucment, cash and sosh equis alemts inclides ssh an hand, derrand depusits with banks, other sh Higghly Hipuid i with original ithes afthiee moniths or less that ase readily
cumvertible to kv amoits of ensh and which e subicct to an inssgalflow fak of chonges i value, and bank ovabiafls, Bak overdmfis are shown within borpaveiings i cwrent Gabilities in the balance
sheet,




INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes te the finsneial st lcments for the yeur caded 31 Murch 2005
(AN amuninis e i rugecs lakis), wiless wlli wise siied)

i

k)

m)

u)

P

]

Cash flaw

Cash fhows are reponied wsing [nadivecs melbod, whershy profit for the yoar is adjuaied for the <fMiets of wansaclions of a non cash nature, any defermls or accqaly of past of flwee openating cash receipls or
Fryments and iem of income oF expemses aso el with investing of i ing cash flov, The csh Ruws fom oot invesiing & finndng setivitios of the oy any or sepregatl The company considers
2l highly fiyuid investments it are readily o eble tw Snow amoits of vash To be csh eyulviis,

Recugnition ol fovy me

The Cormpany exrs rvenue prismarily fom sale of spare parts, tyres andl lubriceris,

Revoaue is iecognisal to the wxien it (5 probable that the econgmic beaglite will Tiow 19 the Company sl the reyeise can be refiably mensured. Revenue i measusod at the fair value ol the eonsideration weozived
or receivable excluding faxes or dubies collscied ga behallof the government and reduced by any rebaies and irade discuunt allowed,

The specilic recognition eriteria desceiliad below must alse Be met befire incune is revugniged.

& Biverie fe rovognisal on acernual basts and provision is msd Socall kaowa kesses and [abilifies.

. Revenue from sale of gods B recugnised net of rebutes aod discosils on trisfor of signi Gt risks and sewands of ownership 1o the buyee. Sule of gennds Is movognised ot of sales tax, value addad tax ond
GST.

. Revenus from services rendered Is recognisad on proraiz basis in proporion o the sizgs alcompleion of the relafsd lransaclion,

v, Inneresst income from debt instrumcnts is recugnised usiig the cfftctive interess nste methinl Thie effictive intorest rate s the rate that exactly discounts estimated futurs cash reccipre thuvugh the expected life of
the financial asset 1o the woss canying amount of @ financinl ssset, When caiculating the officiive imicrcst rute, the Company esiimales the expecied cash fows by consideiing all the comrmeteal torms of the
Grancial instrwne but docs mof corsitler the cxpetad crodt oses,

v Dividend dncome is rvogni=ed when the fight 1o roeeive the dividend is Sxtublished,

vi. Reial iacome &5 roosgrised on @ steight-line basis over the perid of the lease

Emplavee benelits
All empiogee benciits payabletsvailable within iwelve months ol renidering the sorvice are classified as short-ierm cmplovee benefits. Renefits such as sularics, wiges and bonuy ele., are recagnived inthe

Trefined conteibution plan

The Compuny's contribution tw Prosident Furd and Euphoves State Tnsarmuce §chome s detosmined bsed a3 fival pesveatuge of the eligible copluyees® salury and chisged o the Sniremnent of Prfit and Loss
06 acsryal basis, The Company has caisgarised iis Providen! Fund, Itboor welfae Fud and the Emiploves Stute Insurance Scheme g5 2 defined coniribuiion plan sines it has no Guther obligations bevond these
contributions.

Befined benefit plan
The Corrpany s liability iowards granity, being a defined benefit plan arg accounied Tor on the basis o an amdcpendent aciuaial valustion bassd sn Projoci oo Uit Crodit Methadd,
Service cuit mnd the ner intcrost cost is inculed in emgluyee bonofit cxponse in the slatomam of profil and less. Actuerlal gaing 2o Fosses cusnpelse expetione adfustiments and the officts of cunges in setaarial

s and arc rocog Halely in “other comy incame’ as incorme ST sapnse.

Burrowings and other Boenckal Habifides

Burswings aed wilier fraicial Babiiities are initially reoognis=d at Bir value it of transaction costs vured), Differauce hetwesn the frir valise and the tramsactiog rocesds on initial recognifion i rocogised
25 3 asel 4 liability ased o the undodying reacon Rt the difference,

Subrsagucntly o] fawiocial Gabifitics are mosuncd ot smotbicd cost usiig the efective linerest mie moflaod

Bureswings e climinated fram the balaee sheet whn the obdigition specified i the contract is discharged, concellod or expireil. The difference berwoen e carrving amowt of o fnaacial Tinbidity that Jas been
extinguishad or iramsRermad 10 another pury and the consideraion paid. inehusting any non-cash assets truns frred of fadilities s umed, is recogaised 1a profil or loss, The gain / loss is recogaised in other equily
i i of transivtiuns with sharcholdess,

Bormowings ace ¢lassificd o eurnent linbilitics unlees the Cunmpoay has 5a wrcondilivnal right tu defir the serth e of the Treibility for at feast 12 nmathis aftcr (he reporting perfied

Trade receivabiles
A reesivable i classified as a *rede roceivable’ iCiis in respeet of the 2mount due o6 accownt of sorvices rerderad in the normal course of business. Trade reezivables afe recogaised Tnilially at fir valus and
subseyuently measured a7 sanwrtised vost using the EIR mothod kes provision forimpainnent.

Trude payubles

A guyable Is chissifivd 2 0 "teade pryeble’ iR B in napet of e amout due on oot oF gourls pusvhusold o services neceived in the normal vosrse ol business. These ameants reprisont linbilities for pods
nd services provided o the Company prive w the end of the fimuisial yeir which am wipaiil. Thes= anmmwts ape wisecurid snd ane ususlly settled 33 per the payient fenms stated in the eoatroct. Trade anf otfier
payubles are preseated a3 currem liabilivies unless puyment is not due within 12 monhs aler the reporting period They are revognised inftially 3t their ftir viobes and subsequentl meseured ot 4 monised cast
wsing the EIR mathod.

Taxution

i- Tax eapese rcugniicd in profit or |oss comprises the sum o defernal L% and curent ks rigt e giied dn ether comy ehensive incme or directly in auity,

i, Curerit incvme tox Fabilitics zpdfor 4015 comprise e chligativee |, or cleims fom, fscal authorities relsting tu the curreat OF privr reponing periods, that are wipaid 21 he reporing dute, Current 1ax ix
peehie on sasable profi, which differs fim profil ur loss i ihe Gl dataments, Cilieltion o ument. b 15 busenl on tex mies and lae s Bl o ve Seen ol or substaatively cnscred by the o of the
regrirting pericd. Deferved income taxes are caloulated ysing the lizhility method on tesnporary differences betwaen the chrrying amounls of assets aad Fabifiiies and their s boses,

ii. Deferred tax sl are rmeogaised 1o the exient it is probabic that the undzrlyi i 12x lest or doductible wamp diffy will be utilised ayainse fiture sanable inconve, This is assessed basod oa the
Connpaniy’s fareesst of Riture operalions resilts, adiustil fr significan nocetaxable incorme and expuases and specific fimits oa the use of any wiused tax loss o erodi.

v, Changes in el tas asicts or Habilitis are rognised as o compunen! of tax lcome or expunse in profit ar los, evcepl where ey relate 19 Tlems tht are recognived o uthier o rebensivg income ar
dirielly i exuity, in which case i eolitod de R e is alao recugtise] in other comprehonsive incume e aquity, sespodiv wly.

v, Tax creit i5 recogised in rospect of Minimn Alicmate Tax MAT) a5 per the provisions of Section | 1SJAA of the bacore Tax Adt, 1961 based om convincing evidoie: thal the Company will pay nonmal
insunie tax wilhin e st lutury me feamse and 5 reviewed 2t cay balioye sheal dale.

Provisivns and contingent Habilitics
Piuvisiunis are recognisad whea the Company has a present sbligatian (legot or consirictive) =5 3 result of 3 7as1 event. i probable thot 30 oulllow ol rasources embudying soununuc benslits will be requirad to
settle the wbligation amd 2 rellable estiman: can be made of the anssuat of the wbliguivn

Cruntiingent linhilities ane disclused In nepect of possible ohiigations Hat wise fom past events, Whide cxistonee wuold be conlimed By the secmrence ar onxviureice of o r mire smcertain fitbie cveals
oot whally wilhin the curinel of the Company. Such libilities are disciosod by way of nates 1o the linscis] aliementy.

Dheting the vear. there wa subsiantial Bl in the bininess epevations, Bused on filune predicticn, management I ol the view thal, there will nul be any outflow fewards gratuity in excess of the provisions slisady
o, Therefore, s additionnl prosivion is puade during the year, =

Segment repuriing
I the opiniva of suugerment. here is only one repuriable sugmint i, Spare Part of Autonwbilcs a5 cnvisiged by Ind AS 108 "Segment Reporting®, Accurdingly, 10 diselisore for segmen seportiog las been
rrache i the financial stalements,

Deferred reveaue and wnbilled revenue
Amuonits severved Srom custunis or hilled to clstners, i advange of serviees perfuned an woorded s ahefierned peveni wider ‘Onher Currcot Liabilites”, Tibilled v includad m Other Fluoucial Assets!,
fepresenls amaunls tegognised in res pect of services perfurmsed in ascordaree wilh conimct eras, not et billed [0 cusioméns =5 al the year cad

Fignifi Justlg inapplying ing policies and cstimation uneertainty
When preparing the finangial sttements, s germent makes 3 oumber of | A estimaites and piuns bt the revugnition and e of sz, liabifities. freoine and expenses, Uncenainny
nbomt thest wesdmptivns and estimates ool nesult in oucoms i reguing o muiterial sdjusto o e curying st of 1536t ar linbilities Aot in fitture periods.




INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes 10 the financlal statenents for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al mmcnnie are in vnpeie hbdis), sileer e wie Maitged)

Tmpairment of non-fingncial ossets
In gssgscing impai timaics the ble amouat of eseh dsset o7 cash-generaring unil biased ga expected future exh flows and wes 2o inigrest mie to discomt them. Esfimaiion wienianly

el W sssuonplinns abuwt fatur: ings resuibty and the determination of suitable discount rate.

Depreciation and wseful lives of property, plant and eyuipment

Propeny. plant and cquipment are depreciared over the aslimated wefial Lives of the assets, afler taking info sccouat shelr eaimared residual wuluie, Managemens reviews the asiimated uselul fives aud residual
valnes of the assets anouslly in onder 10 determine: the amit of depeeciation 1o be recorded diaring any reoning period. The wseful Tives nod resid] values are bisod on the Company s Risturical eNpurience
wilh simitar svscts and take inio accaunt antivipated techaological changes. The depresiztion Ror fcture periads i ad)is e i ihere are significant changes from pres iois sutimates.

Recuverability of trude reccivabile
Judgments are equined in pasensing the revverbility of sverdue trade neceivibles and determiniig whether a paovision wgninse those veccivables s rayuined Factors considered inchide the crodit rating of the

countcepany, e ank and ming of aticipeied fuee payans snd any possible actions that ean be Liken 1o mitizale the risk ol mon-paymnl.

Provisivns
Prowizions and libilities s cocogpized in the pediod when it becomes probuble that fher will be a fumee outflow of fuds resubing fram pust eperations or svents and the smuuae of eash out luw can be reliably
estimalod. The liming of weagnition end guantificalion of the lisbifity raquire the application of judgment T auisting facts and Cirowmstances. which can be subject o change. Sinve 2 cach outflows ean teke

plee many years in the fture, (e carying amounts of provisions and liabilities ape reviewed segularly and adjustod by take sccount of changing facts and G msties,

Defined beaelit obligstion (DBEG)
Manigenen’s etinuie of the IHD is based on @ nwniber ol aritical unmderiying Sssumpiony such as sanmdand mtzs of infllion, muility, discount rate and anlicipasion of future salary increases. Varfation in
these pssumptions may significantly impact the DBO o moust sod (he am 1] defined bencfit expesscs

Defined confribution plan
Amwunt of Its. 3.18 Lakh (31 March 2023 R, 3,10 Lakh) penmining W emphoyers’ contribathn 10 provideal fund, persion Bud, fabour weifire fund and adminssti jon charyes i recognized 23 an eapense and
inzhuded in “Eonplivyoe bevefits * in Mote 24,

Drefined benefit plan:
Crutuily plan: 2

The Cunany apesiees o gratuity plan which provides tump sum bepefits Hnked o the qualifving salury and svnpletsd yours of sevise with the Conpany at the e of separution, Every empluyes who has
complelod 5 years of cuminuous service i entited 10 receive Sratuily at the time of his rlirement or separation from thy organiation whichever is arlier. However, the condition of compiction of § years of
serviee is not applicable whare sipuration is oa acout ofdisabitity or death of s conplises, The gratuin heachit that is payable W any emplu e, i5 computed in acourdance with the provisions of “The Puginent
af Gratuity Aet, 1971

The Gratity fund
The Follow g table sets forth the status of the gratuity plun of the Cormpany and the amowts rexognised i the bulance sheet and starcancnt af peofit el Jogs:

Pariiculars Far the year cnded | For the year ended
31 diarch 2015 31 March 2024

Changes jn the prewnt valug off

el enefit oblization

Peescar valioe a5 a1 the Leylaning of thel 1264 1203

year

Luctuded in profit and loss sccuunt

-Current strvice cost 117, 1.5

<liberey | oust n.92 QLT

-Past Service Cast -| g

LBenchits paid - -f

Included ju olher com prefuenaive

Imgnme

-heliarial foss! (gaim) avising o (4.4 {1.80)

chungs in

Presear value of the ohligution ut the 10,65 1254

|end althe year

Parlicalars As b 3| March Asat 31 Murch

25 204

Preseat value of unfuraded obligations 165 1264

Ned linbility 1065 12.64]

Lishility 10 65) 1264

9.24] 1074
141 1.90)

Nel lability 10.65] 12.64

Principal setuarial sssumptions ot the balance shevt date aré as follows-

Economic assumptions:
The principa! assumplices are the diseount raie and sulury eszalurion rte. The dhecount rafe is genemlly bused upon the market vickds avalishle on Govermnsent bouds a he accaunting dile with o term that

muatchis that of the fiakilinics am! the satary gowih ralz takis oot of inflafion, senivaity, promaolion and other relevent factors on ung 1o busis, The assiarip s sl are swnnisied in the fillowing tshle:

| Purliculars Asar Az at
31 Mlurch 2025 | 31 Murch 2014
Distoun] rale pa. T, 725%
Salary eccalation aite pa. F.008% 5.0
D wphiie 3% s,
Particulars Asatb Asar
31 Murch 2025 | 31 March 2024
Mosmial retiserien nge 60 yeus &0 years
|Merality TALM (2012-14)  [LALM (20612-14)

Enmpliges tumser 21 - 60 yours- £30 21 - 60 yuars- 554




INDUS AUTOMODTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes te the finunciul statements for the yeur ended 31 March 2025
(Al mnounts are in pugecs Tadhie), snless offio e ise Siit ]

wl

X

Bensitivity Analysls
The key actuaril s umgvion twhich the Sencfit obligatin results an panicularly sensiive to discouat rare and Riiure silary escalating rate. The folliwing table summarizes the impeet un the reported defined
biesielit obligalion ot the end of'the reparting perod arising on account of an increase of decrease in the reporied msumption by 106 basis polas.

Purticulurs Year ended 31 March 2028 Year ended 31 Blarch 2024 |
Discaunt rafe Sulury escalution Discounl rate | Sulary vscalation
ratg rele

9,73 1135 11.53 1595
174 943 1395 1150

Increase (decresse) on plus 100 bps

Althugh the daulysie thvs ot tike account of the il distitation of cish fows e pected] wider the plan, it docs proviile an approviaution of the sersitivity of the sssumprions shown.
Thesy scnsovitas s Tovn sabenlital 10 show e muverment i defined benelit obligstion in Bolution and assuming thees are oo ofler whanges in muke! comitions ae the reporting date.

Expecied maturity analysis
The expected maturily ol psis of delined bave obligation is o5 Mllows:

| Puriiculurs As ot 31 Murch As ot 3| Murch
2025 2024
Less than | yrar 141 1E9
0.20 033
-5 v .64 0.6k
Maie than 5 vaars 240 .34

The welghicd average dimaiion w the payment af defined bene it obligation is 18 years (31 Marmh 2024; 19 yoas),

REE analysis:

The abu delimed bemafit plin cupuse the Company the Bllowing rsks:

Interest rute risk
The dilimsd benefit o ligstion calewdited uses 3 discuunt rate Sased on government bends, [T bond yields £l the defiood benefit obfigation will tend 1o increese.

Salary inMativn rlsk
Higher than wapected fwrcases in sy will ncozise thie defined bedofit ubligation,

Demugraphic risk:

Tiiis is the sisk of variibiliny of restits due o wystcnsiie nane of decreasits that inciade ot ity withdesad, disubility and pe; The effit of these ducrements an the difincd beasefit obligation is not
stenght forward and depends upon the combinglion of safary incresse. discount mte and vesling criteria, 1 s imperiant 0ot to overstaie withdrawals because in the faancial analysis Lhe retirerment benelit of o
Short citreer enplugve bpically costs less per yoar == evmpared foa kng service emphoye,

Fair value measurenent

Margeimei uses valuatien tochaigess 10 detcrmine the fair value of Buancial insioumens (where setive market quates ase ol Jvullable) and poa-foancial assets, This insolves developing eslimites and
Sustumplicis cunsistont with how mouket panivipis woald price the M it bases s Mits o ubseryable dats 5 far 25 posible but this is not alwsys availoble, In that (T TR
uses the best information available. Extimaied Giir values may vary from the 2ctual prices shat would be sehicved inan amm's tengrh imnsaction a1 the seponing dale.

Exinls aflor reporting perivd
Adivating events are cveats that pee ide further e idence of conditias that existed at the oad of the reporiing perionl. The finnicial stitemes ane adfusted fug stich events befure authoriztin for fssus.
Non-sdjisting events are evzats thas acs indicative of condifions that amse afler the end of the repuning perivd, Neg-ndjusiing svents atler the reporting dute 3re not accoured, but disclosed,

Critival Aceounting Judgen vils and Koy Suurces of Estimation Uncertuinty
The prepanativon of the Compuay’s Finardtl Statemuits i nagenont o arke judgement, ostimate: and assumptins that affat the eportud amount of revenie, capenses, asscts and fiabilities and the
avcompanyiny disclosises, Uneerainty about hese assumptions ad estinates cwuld cesult in outeornes that venuire a materiil sdjusiment to the carryiiig amount of assets pr liabilities afovted in next Baucinl

yeurs,

Recoverabliity of Trade Receivihles
Hatlpcments are equireed i assessing the pecuserabilig of ovendue frade reccivables snd defermiiing wherhr § provision agaist those rocciviables # roguined. Facters consdered include the credit taling ofthe
counterparty, the mewnt and timing of anicipatod fuuee pagmcnts and any posible sctions tat can be tken to mitigate the risk of non-payment,

Provisiens
The liming of rocognit o and quankification of the lability Ginehuding litizalions) reuires the application of fudgemunt to eiiating fiocts and cirumsteness, which can be subject 1o change. The Garrying amowts
ofprovivions and Habiliies are reviewed regidarly and revised io toke mceoun of chaiging fcls and circumaznces.

Bounding of amuunts
Al amnnts dischosed in the financial staiemenis and nstes have been mandisd oV 'bo the nearest Lathis as per the requirement of Schedule 1L unfers olferwise sizted.
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INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amaunts are in rupees lakhifs), unless atlierwise stited)

4

a)

b

i)

Investments (non-current)

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive Incame
lnvestment in equity shares

Unyuoted equity instruments of other compunies (at FYTOC1):

Sips Unilities Private Limited

1,50,088 (Prev Year: 1,50,088) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

Kartikuy Exploration & Mining Services Private Limited

3,29,800 (Prev Year: Nil) Equity sharcs of Rs. 10/ each fully paid up
Investment in preference shares

Unquoted preference shares of other companies (at FYTOCL):

Swaslik Power and Mineral Resources Private Limited

60,68, 108 (Previous year: 71,84,069) preference shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid up

River Sido Utilitics Private Limited
2,46,410 (Previous year: 2,46,410) preference shares of Rs, 10/- each fully paid up

Seuside Uilities Private Limited
12,00,070 (Provious year: 12,00,070) preference shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up

Loans (Nen- Current)

Inter Corpurate Deposit

Other financiol assets (non-current )
[Unsecured, considerad good unless atherwise stated)

Security deposits
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)
The balanves comprises temporary differences attributable to the

Deferred tax assets arising on account of

Asat
31 March 2025

Asat
31 March 2024

14,95 9.07
111.60 2
606.8| 71841

5.85 5,85
377 227
742.98 737.10

Asat As ut
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1,547.33 2,604.76
1,547.33 2,604.76

Asat Asat

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

6.17

6.17

Asat
31 March 2025

Asat
31 March 2024

-Provision far gratuity {1509 (14.59)
-Property, plant and equipment 7.60 9.12
-Investiment in shares at fair value 34.18 35.66
26,69 30.19
Net deferred tax asset/ (linbilities) 26.69 30.19
Net Balance 4 7 Net Balance iy _ Net Balance
Maovement in deferred tax balances As at R::;?ZI:T::: Recuaglwd b As at R;ﬁ't' o |u:: B SCI " Asat
01Apritzo2s | P 31 March 2024 | P 31 March 2025
Deferred tax asset
Praperty, plant and equipment 1090 (1.78) - 9.12 (1.52) - 7.60
Tatal 10.90 (1.78) - 9.12 (1.52) - 7.60
Deferred tax Hability
Provision for gratuity 14,74 (0 60} 045 14.59 (0.53) 1.03 15.09
Lovestment in shares at fair value (35.66) - - (35.66) - 1.48 {34.18)
Deferred tax asset (net) 31.82 (118 (0.45) 3019 (0.99) (2.51) 26.69
As at Asat

Other non-current asyets

Advance for which value to be receiverd
Pre-deposit for Appeal (Refer note no 34)

Inventories

(valued at the lover of cost or net realizalile valie)

Stores & spares

31 Mayrch 2025

31 Murch 2024

160.00 160,00
0.92 =
160.92 160.00
—
Asat Asat

31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024
36.79 41.78

36,79 41.78




INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statcments for the year ended 31 March 2025

(AN amownts are in rupecs lakh(s), valess otherwise stated)

10

11

13

15

Trade receivahles
(Unsecured, considered good wibess otherwise stated)

Asat
31 March 2025

Asat
31 March 2024

Traile receivables 94.77 164.59
94.77 164.59
Trade receivable ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2025
: Leis ﬂf_ﬂ § L i 1to 2 vears 2 to 3 years More than 3 years Total
Parliculars year
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered goud 54,12 953 3.11 354 24.47 94.77
Undisputed Trade Reccivables — which have significant - = 5 = i &
Undisputed Trade Receivables — eredit impaired - E ] - " a
Disputed Trade receivables — considered good - - - - - .
Disputed Trade Reveivables — which have significant - - - % - -
Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired . - = = = =
Totul 54.12 9.53 .11 3.54 24.47 94.77
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars u:o::]tlll:: > 5 m";::: o I to 2 years 2to3 yeurs  [More thon 3 years Total
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 66.95 15.71 6.55 Q.70 74.68 164.59
Unclisputed Trade Receivables —which have significant - 5] = - ¥ -
Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired e - . - - %
Disputed Trade receivables — considerad woad - - - - - =
Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant - - - . - a
Disputed Trade Reccivables — credit impaired - . - - = =
Total 66,95 _15.71 6.55 0.70 74.68 164,59
Cash, cash equivalents and other bank balances Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash and cash equivalents
Buolanes with banks 26.10 1.99
Cash in hand 1.78 2.09
27.88 4.08
Loans (Current) As at Asat

Inter Corpurate Deposit

Other current assets

Staffadvance
Advance to supphiers
Advanee tax/ TDS

Other equity

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Opening balance

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Other comprehensive income/{loss) of the year
Less: Adjustmemt for Advance taves of earlier year
Closing balonce

Tutal

Burruwings (nun-current)

Loan from finaneial Institution (Secured)
Inter Corporate Deposits

Measured at amaortised cost

Unsecured loans

Unsecured loan from relatives of director
Unsecured loan from others

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

705.10

TO5.10

Asat
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

0.16 032
1.08 7.83
39.10 41.88
40.34 49.93
As at Asat

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1,992.45 1,930.3]
59.38 66.66
745 135
(0.28) (58T7)
2,059.00 1,992 45
3_.259.00 1,992.45
As at As at

31 Mareh 2025

31 March2024

356.59 327.15
207.45 519.06

4.47 4.13
568.51 850.34




INDUS AUTOMOTIVES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in rupees lakhis), unless otherwise stated)

17

18

20

As at
31 March 2025

Pruvisions (non-current)

Ag at
31 March 2024

Pravision for gratuity 9,24

10.74

9.24

10,74

Agut
31 March 2025

Provisiens (current)

Asat
31 March 2024

Provision for Income tax 19.59 21.29

Provision for gratuity 141 1.90
21.00 23.19

Trade payables As at Asat

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Dues to micro and small enterprises# 287.54 330011
Dues to other than micto aid small enlerprises 23693 206,87
52447 626.98

Note:
#DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmient Act, 2006 (' MSMED Act'), The disclosures pursuant to the said

MSMED Act are as follows:

Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
287.54 330011

a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year

b) Interest due remiining unpaid 1o any supplicr at the end of the vear g

¢} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Agt, 2006, wlong with the amount of the pavment made to
the supplier beyand the appointed day during the year

d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which huve been paid bus beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year -

1) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the suceeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above arc

actually paid to the small ewerprises, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditurs under seetion 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Disclosure of puyable to vendors as defined under the "Micro, Small and Mediun Enterprise Development Act, 2006" is bused on the informution available with the Company
regurding the status of registration of such vendurs under the suid Act, as per the intimation received from then on requests made by the Company. Interest provision has been made

Jor overdue principal amounts/ interest to MSME venduors at the Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made to such supplivrs during the year or for

any earlier years and

accordingly there is no interest paid of outstanding intorest in this regard in respect of payment made during the year or on balance brought forward from previous year.

Aguing of trade payuables as on 31 March 2025

Particulars MSME Others Disputed MSME | Dispuled Dues - Total
Others
Not Due - = - o -
Less than | Years 1592 17.86 - - 33.78
12 Years - 442 - - 442
23 years 11.62 11.89 - - 2350
Mare than 3 years 260.00 202 76 - - 462.76
Total Trade Payables 287.54 236.93 - - 524.47
Ageing of trade payables as on 31 March 2024
Particulars MSME Others | Disputed MSME | Disputed Dues - Total
Others
Mot Bue = = = - =
Less than 1 Yours 11.34 26.31 - - 3765
1-2 Years 13.48 14.98 - - 28.46
2-3 years 0o 360 - - 3169
Mure than 3 yeurs 305.20 251.98 - . - 557.18
Tatal Trade Payables 330.11 296.87 - - 626.98

Other financial liabilities (eurrent) Asat As at
31 March2025 31 March 2024
Salary und wages payable 22.19 21,13
Audit fes payable 236 230
24,55 2343

Other current liabilities As at Asat

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

8.97
111.26
188.71

Stalulory dues puyuble 885
Advance received for which value to be paid 11126
Advance from customer 90.12

210.23

308.94
=
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14 Share eapital

a)

b)

)

d)

¢}

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shures Amount
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach 3,50,000 55.00 5,50,000 55.00
5,350,000 S5.00 5,50,000 55.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 5,25,000 52.50 525,004 52.50
5,25,000 52.50 5,25,000 52.50
Recunciliation of the number of shares oulstanding af the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
No. of Shares Amount No, of Shares Amount
Equity Shares
Shares at the beginning of the yeur 525,000 52.50 5,25,000 52.50
Add: shares issued during the year - - = -
Taotal 525,000 52.50 525,000 52.50

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only vie clugs of equity shares, having a par value of Rs.10 per share. All shares rank pari passu with respect to dividend, voting
rights and other terms. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Direclors is subject to
approval of sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, excepl in case of interim dividend. The repayment of equily share capital in the
event of liquidation and buy back of shares are possible subject to prevalent regulations, In the event of liquidation, normally the equity
shargholders are cligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shureholding

Share held by Holding Company
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Equity shares of Rs.10 cach, fully paid up held No. of Shares % of sharcsheld  No. of Shares % of shares held
by:
Sindhu Trade Links Limited 5,15,000 981085 5,15,000 98.10%
515,000 98.10% 5.15,000 98.10%
Detuils of Equity sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024
Equity shures of Rs.10 each, fully paid up held No. of Shares % of shares held Mo, of Shares % of shures held
by: Ao
Sindhu Trade Links Limited 5,15,000 98,1004 §,15,000 98.10%
5,15.000 98.10% 521 5,000 98.10%
Details of sharcholing of promoters:-
Shares held by promofers at the end of the year Yethange during
the year
Promoter Name No. of Shures %a of total shares
Yashpal Saharan 5,000 0.95% 0.00%
Sujata Khod 5,000 0.95% 0.00%
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6

Revenue from operations

Sale of stores & spares
Sale of lubricant
Labour receipts

Less: Sales return
Lazss: Discount given

Other income

Interest income

Discount received
Miscellaneous income
Sundry Balance Written off

Purchase of stock in trade

Stores and spares (net of return)

Change in inventury

Opening stock
Less: Closing stock

Employee bencfit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contributivn to provident and other funds

Provision for grauity

Workmen and staiT welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest expense from financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Interest on borrawings
Interest on cash eredit limit

For the vear ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

59 88 120.68
485 478
36.61 1654
0.26 0.52
0.01 0.10
141,07 161.38
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

179.73 208.78
0.23 229
0.82 0.58
2.18 s,
182,96 211.65
=
For the year ended For the yeur ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

85.29 106.73
§5.20 106.73
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 Murch 2024

41.78 43.40
36.79 41.78
4.99 1.62_

Fur the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

5295 49.91
346 318
209 2.42
246 249
60.96 S58.00
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

32,73 30.00
43.03 43.56
75.76 73.56
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Other expenses

Repair & maintcnance;

- Plant and machinery

Power & fuel

Lease rental charges
Statutory auditor's remuneration
Buank charges

Bad debts

Postage & telegram

Printing & stationery
Electricity and water charges
Insurance expenses

GST Jate fee

Interest on TDS

Rates, fees & taxes

Freight & carlape

Telephone expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Legal & professional charges

Earnings per shure

Profit/(luss) attributable to equity holders
Profiti{loss) aitributable to equity holders

. Weighted average number of equity shares

Numher of equity shares of Rs. 10 cach at the beginning of the year
Number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the end of the vear

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the end of the year for ealoulation of basic camnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) - on profit/ (loss)
Nominal vahue per share (in Rs.)

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

177 238
0.64 0.60
4.80 4.80
1.34 1.28
0.04 0.04
- 2551
0.01 0.02
0.47 0.48
0.21 0.20
0.24 0.12
043 0.02
023 1.06
0.23 0.33
0.58 070
0.11 0.15
2.16 1.94
0.53 0.52
13.79 40.15
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

5938

5,25,000
5,25,000

525,000

1131
10.00

66.66

5,25,000
5,25,000

5,25,000

12,70
10.00
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Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

1. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises principally from trade receivables, loans & advances, cash & cash
equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions and customers.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed according to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance
with this assessment.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor
receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 27.88 Lakhs at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024 Rs, 4.08 Lakhs). The cash and cash
equivalents are held with bank and financial institution with high rating,

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each
counterparty.

Credit risk is managed on Company wide basis. For banks/financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted.

Loans
The Company has given loans and advances as security deposits. The credit risk is managed by the Company in accordance with the Company's
policy.

(i) Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date was:

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Financizal assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 months Expected Credit
Losses (ECL)
Loans 2,252.42 2,604.76
Other financial assets ; - 6.17
2,252.42 2,610.93

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using Life time Expected Credit
Losses (ECL)
Trade and other receivable 94.77 164.59

94.77 164.59

(ii) Provision for expected credit losses

(a) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses

The Company has assets where the counter- parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is very low.
Accordingly, loss allowance for impairment has not been recognised.




(b) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses

The Company has customers with strong capacity to meet the obligations and therefore the risk of default is negligible or nil. Further,
management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment
behavior and extensive analysis of customer credit risk, Hence, no impairment loss has been recognised during the reporting periods in respect
of trade receivables,

(iii) Ageing analysis of trade receivables

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as below:

Ageing As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Not due 3 S
0-30 days past due 12.87 14.75
31-60 days past due 15.56 24.05
61-90 days past due 11.98 3.05
91-180 days 14.58 25.09
More than 180 days past due 39.78 97.65
Total 94.77 164.59

(iv) Reconciliation of impairment loss provisions

There is no impairment loss provisions recognised during the year.
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Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

2. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meetin
cash or another financial zsset, The Company’s approsch to mianaging liguidi
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incutring unaceeptable lossss or risking damage to the C ompany’s reputation.

The Company has an appropriate liquidity risk minagemenl framework far the man
requirements. The Cumpiny mansges liquidity risk by maintaining

adequate cash reserves, banking facilitiss and

monitoring forecast and actual cash fluws and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The Company's treasury department is responsible for managing the short term and long term
is reviewed daily by Treasury. The Board of directors has established policies to manage liqui
such policies. Any breaches of these policies are reported to the Board of Directors. Long term liquidity position is reviewed on a re

Directors and appropriate decisions are taken according to the situation.

Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expens
financial obligations, this cxeludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot re

The following are the contractual maturilies of financial liabilities, based on contractual cash Aows:

g the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are seltled by delivering
ty is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its

agement of short, medium and long ferm funding and liquidity management
teserve borrowing facilities by continuously

liquidity requirements of the Company. Short term liquidity situation
dity risk and the Company’s treasury department operates in line with
gular basis by the Board of

s for a period of 60 days, including the servicing of
asonably be predicted, such as natural disasters,

Contractual maturities of financial Liabilities as on 31

Later than 1 year and

March 2025 Not later than 1 year 0ot later than 5 years Later than § years Total
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Buorrowings - 56851 - 568.51
Expenses payable 24.55 - - 24,55
Trade and other payables 524.47 - - 524.47
Total 549,02 568.51 - 1,117.53
ISI“;:-‘;:?UL';; maturities of financial liabilities as on 31 Not later than 1 year E:::::;Ii:;n:;:: Later thau 5 years Total
Non-derivative finuncial linbilitics

Burrowings - 850,34 - B50.34
Expenses payable 2343 - - 23.43
Trade and other payables 626,98 - - (26,98
Tutal 650.41 850.34 - 1,500.75
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3. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in macket prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates will affeet the Company’s income or the value
of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk munagement is to manage and control market risk exposures within

aceeplable parameters, while opfimising the return.

The Board of directors is responsible for selting up of policies and procedures to manage market risks of the Company, The regular reviews
including diversifications of borrowings to mitigate the market risks are carried out considering the rates of interest and other borrowing terms.

Currency risk

The Company has no financial assets/liabilitics in foreign currency as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 and hence there is no exposure to

exchange rate fluctuation.

Interest rate risk

The Company is expused to intercst rate risk arising mainly from long term borrowings with flaating interest rates, The Company is exposed to
interest rate risk because the cash flows associated with floaling rate borrowings will fluctuate with changes in interest rates.

At the reporling date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Financial Assets

Fixed-rate instruments

Loans 2,252.42 2,604.76

Other financials assets - 6.17
2,252.42 2,610.93

Financial Liabilities

Fixed-rate instruments

Borrowings 568,51 850.34

S68.51 8§50.34

Variable-rate instruments

Borrowings = -

Tutal 568,51 850.34

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company’s fixed rate instruments are carried at amortised cost, They are therefore not sul

amount nor the fulure cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate Instruments

bject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying

A change of 50 basis points in inferest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts

shuwn below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates,

the same basis for the previous year.

remain constant, The analysis is performed on

Particulars

FProfit! (loss), net of tax

50 bp increase

50 bip deerease

31 March 2025

Cnsh credit from bank

31 March 2024

Cash credit from bank
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30 Fair Value Mcasurements

() Financial instruments by catego

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Pitisulive Carrying value Carrying value
FYTPL FVTOCI |Amortised Cost| FVTPL FVYTOCI Amortised
Cost

Financial assets

Non-current

Investinents - 742.98 - - 737.10 -
Louns - - 1,547.33 - - 2,604.76
Other financial assets - - - - - 6.17
Current

Trade receivables - - 94.77 - - 164.5%
Cash and cash equivolents - - 27.88 - - 4.08
Luans - - 705.10 - -

TOTAL - 742.98 2,375.08 - 737.10 2,779.60
Finuncial liabilities

Nun Current

Borrowings - - 568.51 - - 85034
Current

Borrowings - - - - - -
Trade payables - - 524.48 - - 616.98
Other linancial liabilitics - - 2455 w = 23,43
TOTAL - - 1,117.54 - - 1,500,75

(b) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
measured at amartised cost and fair value for which fair values are disclosed in the Gnancial statements, To provide an indicalion
about the reliubility of the inputs used in determining fair value, the cumpany has clussified its financial instruments into the three
levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table,

Assets and liabilities which are measured at fair values

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investments - - 742.98 - - 73710
TOTAL 5 2 742.98 . y 737.10
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Loans - - 225243 - - 2,604.76
Other finuncial assets - - - - - 6.17
Trade receivables - - 94.77 - - 164.59
Cash and cash equivalenis - - 2788 - - 4.08
TOTAL - - 2.375.08 - - 2,779.60
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - 568.51 - - 85034
Traile paybles 524.45 62698
Other financial liablities 24,55 23,43
TOTAL - - 1,117.54 - - 1,500.75

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a valuation team

that has averall responsibility for oversecing all significant fair value measurements and reports dircctly to the Chief finance officer.

The valualion team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as

broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the valuation feam assesses the evidence obtained from the

third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meer the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value

hierarchy in which the valuations should be clussifed. Significant valualion issues are reported to the Compuny's audit commitlce.
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Measurement of fair values

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

Level 1; Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed eguity instruments and
traded bonds that have quoted price.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates, I all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is nol based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The
fair value of financial assets and liabilities included in Level 3 is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
bused on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes of similar
instruments. This level includes derivalive MTM assets/liabilities.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation technigque used to value financial instruments include:

- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

- the fair value of interest rate swaps is culeulated as the present value of the estinuted future cash flows bused on ohservabla yield
curves.

- the fair value of prineipal swaps is determined using forward exchangs rates at the balance sheet date.

- the fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

(¢) Fair value of finuncial assets and Habilities measured at umortised cost

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Skl Carrying Fuir value Carrying Fair value
Value Yalue

Finuncial assets

Non-Current

Louns 1,547.33 1,547.33 2,604.76 2,604.76

Other financial asscls - - 6.17 6.17

Current

Trade receivables 94.77 94.77 164.59 164.59

Cash and cash equivalents 2788 27.88 4.08 4.08

Loans 705.10 705,10 - -

TOTAL 2,375.08 2,375.08 2,779,610 2,779.60

Finaneial liabilities

Non Current _

Borrowings 56851 568.51 850.34 850.34

Current

Borrowings - - - -

Trade payables 524.48 524.48 626.98 626.98

Other finuncial liabilities 24.55 24.55 23.43 23.43

TOTAL 1,117.54 1,117.54 1,500.75 1,500.75

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and ¢ash equivalents, bank balances other than cash, deposits with
banks and interest accrued but not due and other current financial assets and current financial liabilities, approximates the fair
valiies, due to their short-term nature,

Non current fingneial assets whose the carrying amounts are equal to the fuir values.

For finanvial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values,
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31 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings in domestic currency, trade payables and other payables. The
main purpese of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans,
trade & ather receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operativns.,

The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

This note explains the suurces of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

Risk Exposure arising from Messurement Manag t
Credit Risk Cash and cash Ageing analysis Diversification of bank
equivalents, trade Credit ratings depuosits, credit limits and
receivables, financial letters of cradit

assely measired at
amortised cost

Liquidity risk NA Cash flow farecasting Availability of borrowing
Sensitivily analysis facilities
Market risk — interest rate risk Barrowings at variable  |Sensitivity analysis Diversification and regular
rates review of borrowings

Risk management framework

The Company’s activities makes it susceptible to varivus risks. The Company has taken adequate measures to address such concerns by
developing adequate systems and practices. The Company’s overall risk management program fucuses on the unpredictability of markets and
seeks fo manuge the impact of thesc risks on the Company's finuncial performance.

The Board of Dircctors has averall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. In order
to institutionalize the risk management in the Compuny, an elaborate Enterprise wide Risk Management (ERM) framework has been
developed. As a part of the implementation of ERM framewaork, an Enterprise Risk Management Committee (ERMC) with various Executive
Directors as its members has been conslituted with an objective to develop and monitor the Company's risk management policies and

trengthen the risk gement framework. Enterprise risk management commiltee aller deliberations has identified enterprise wide risk and
varioits action plans for short term as well as long term have been formulated to mitigate these risks.

The Committes is also responsible for reviewing and updaling the risk profile, monitoring the effectiveness of the risk management
framework and reviewing at least annually the implementation of the risk management policy and framework. The Committee reports
regularly to the Board of Dircclors on its activities.

The Compiny’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Conipany, to set appropriate risk limits
and contrels, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations,

The Company has pelicies covering specific arcas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and the use of non-derivative financial
instruments. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed on a continuous basis.
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32 Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when manuging capital are to:
- safeguard its ability to continue as 2 geing concern, so that it ean continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and

- maintain an appropriate capital structure of debt and equity.

The Board of Directors has the primary responsibility to muintain a strong capilal buse and reduce the cost of capital through prudent
management of deployed funds and leveraging opportunities in domestic and international financial markets so as to maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Dircetors monitors the return on capital, which the
Company defines as result from operating activities divided by total shareholders™ equity. The Board of Directars also monitars the level of
dividends to equity shareholders.

In order to achieve the vverall objeclive, the company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest bearing loans and borrowings that define capilal structuee requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any
interest-bearing loans and borrowings in the current period,

The Company monitors capital, using a medium term view of three to five yeass, on the basis of a number of financial ratios generally used by
industry and by the rating agencies.

The Company monitors capital using gearing catio which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt comprises of long term and short term
borrowings. Equity includes cquity share capital and reserves that are managed as capilal. The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting periods
was as follows:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Tutal debis 56851 850.34
Total equily 2,111.50 2,044.95

Net debt to equity ratio 0.27 0.42
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33 Related party disclosures
Asper Ind AS 24, the disclosure of transactions with related partics are given below:

(a) List of relaled parties where confrol exists and also other related parties with whom transuction have taken pluce and
relationships
Nume of Realted Purty Relativnship
Sindhu Trade Links Limited Holding Company
Saurabh Sindhu
Somvir Sindhu Directorsiey Management Personnel
Yashpil Saharan
Sarvesh Sundhu

Saraj Sindhu
Secha Saharan
Aman Saluan

Relative of Key Management Pcrsu;nu'l

Gevia Automohiles
V.V, Trinsprnt
M.S. & Sons

5 8 Teanspurt
Swastik Puwer & Mineral Resources Pyt Lid Enterprise where KMP or their relutives are inferested (Other)
Sudha Bio Power Pyt Litd

Shyam Inclus Power Solutions Pvt Lid
Parain Mitm Associntes Pt Lid

(b} Transactions during the year with relfated parties
Directors/Hey Relative of Key
Nauture of Transactions Holding Company Munagement Munug: t Others Total
Personnel Persunnel
Purchase of Dieset, Petrol & Lubricants - - - - -
= - - (0.02) (0.02)
Purchase of Spares 4.2( - - - 4.21
(3.70) - N (4.70)
Rent Paid - 4.80 - - 4.80
- (4.80) - - (4.80)
Sale of Spares 139 2 - 1.51 2.91
(25.37) -] - (4.42) (29.7%)
Sale of Lubricanls 0.0 - - - .09
Luhour receipts 8.52 0.67 9.19
Interest Intume - - 566 5.66
Repair & maintcnance 0.65
Inter corporate depuosits given - - - 700.00 Tik.00
Figures in ( }are as at 31 March, 2024
(<} Qutstanding bulunees as of yvear end as on 31 March 2025
DircclorsiKey Relative of Key
Particulurs Holding Company Management Management Others Total
P 1 Personnel
Trade Payable 1283 - - 129.24 142.07]
(10193 - - (129.73) {231.65)
Rent Paynhle - 432 - 4.32
(17.28) - (17.28
Advance from Costomers - - - 52.06 £2.06
= i e (49 68) (49.68)|
Inter corpurate depusits given - - - T0s.10 Ti5.10
Trude Receivable - - - 037 0.37
= 2 (15.48) (15.48)|
Salary Payuble 17.70 17.70
{1770} (17.70)

Figures in () are as at 3] March, 2024

F4

24 Contingent Liability

During the year GST avthurities in Chhattisgarh have raised o demand of 217,06 lakhs against the Company under Section 73 of the Central Guuds and Services Tix Act,
2017, pestaining 1o the perivd from July 2017 to March 2018, The demand has been mised on the groundy of alleged short payinent of tax without invecation of fisd,
suppression, or willful missitement The Company has filed an appeal before the appropsiate appeliate authority challenging the demund. Bused on legal advice and

management’s asscssment, the Company believes that it has o strong case on merils and the probability of an oulflow of econvmic resources is remute.

movision has been made in the books of accounts. However, the demand has been disclosed as a contingent liability.

Accondingly, no
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i)

ii)
iii)
iv)

v)

¥i)
vii)

viii)

ix)

x)

xi)

xii)

xiif)

xiv)

V)

xvi)

(a)

(b)

Xvii)

xvii}

xvii)

Additional Regulatory Information

All the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
exceuled in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company does not have any investment property,
The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company does not have any intangible assets.

No loans or advances in the nature of loans were granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as-defined under Companies Act,
2013), cither severally or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on demand or without specilying any term of repayment.

The Company does not have any capital work in progress.
The Company does not have any inlangible assets under development.

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for helding any benarni property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current nssets. In this respect please note that-

L Quaterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of

Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, Company has not entered into any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1936

As on Balance Sheet ended 3 1st March 2025, neither any creation of charge nor any satisfaction thereof, is pending to be registered with ROC
beyond the statutory period.

Clause (87) of Sectiun 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable on the company,
though complied.

Financial ratios required has been disclosed sepralely in Note 36 to the financial statements.

During the year, no scheme of arrangements in relation to the Company has been approved by the competent authority in terms of Section 230 to
237 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, aforesaid disclosure are not applicable, since there were no transaction.

Utilisation of Borrowed fund and share premium:

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (cither berrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to
any other person or entity, ineluding foreign entities (“Intermediaries™) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons/entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (‘ultimate beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entilies (“Funding party”) with the underslanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party (ultimate beneficiaries); or provide dny guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
ultimate beneficiaries.

The company does not have any undiselosed income .

Section 135 of the Act read with the Companics (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is not applicable on the company, though
complied.

The Company does not deal in crypto currency or virtual currency.
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0]

(i)

(iii)
(a)

(b

Incume tax recognised in

Disclusure pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income tiaes"

at of profit and loss

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March2025 | 31 March 2024
Current tux 19.59 2129
Deferrad tax charge! {credit) 0.99 L.I8
Total income tax expense 20.58 1247

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2025 For the year ended 31 March 2024
Particulars Tax expense/ 25 Tux expense/
Before tax (beaeit) Nt of tax Beforc tax (benefit) Net of tax
- Nelactuarial gains (losses) on delined bene(it plans. 408 103 3.05 1.80 0.45 1.35
- Change in Fair value of equity instruments through OCT 5.88 1.48 4.40 - - -
9.96 2.51 7.45 1.80 0.45 135
Reconciliation of tax expense and the nccounting profit multiplicd by Indin®s domestic tax rate :
Current tax
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
s s 31 March 2028 31 Mareh 2024
(%) (%)
Profit/{loss) before tax 79.96 8%.13
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25,1687 (2023-24 25.168%0) 25.16%% 20,12 25.16% 2243
Tax effect of:
Non-deduciible expenscs 226% 181 L77% L.58
Depreciation! amortisation ~2.85% (2.35) -304% (2.72)
Carry Rorwand of losses and unabsorbed depreciation 0.00% - 0.00% -
At the effective income tax rale 24.47% 19.59 23.88% 31%
Deferred tax eharpei(eredit)
Fur the year Fur the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
(i) Increase/{decrease) in deferred tax liability ot tux rate of 25.168% (2023-24 25.168%)
Provision for gratuily 0.50 (0.14)
Investment in shares at fair value 148 -
(ii) Increuse/{decrease) in deferred tax asset at tax rate of 25.168%% (2023-24 25.168%)
Due to property, plant and espuigment and eapital work-in-progress (1.52) (1.78)
Deferred fax charpeferedit) 3.50 1.64
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For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Payment to auditors:
Audit fees 1.34 1.28
1.34 1.28

In the opinion of the management, the value on realisation of current assets, loans & advances in the ordinary course of business would not be less than
the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet and provisions for all known liabilities has been made.

None of the employees of the company was in receipt of remuneration exceeding Rs. 5,00,000/- p.m. where employed for the part of year or Rs.
60,00,000/- p.a. where employed throughout the year,

Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever considered appropriale or necessary in line with current year classification or Ind
AS.

The financial statements of the Campany for the year ended 31 March 2025 were approved for issue by board of directors on 27th May 2025.

As per our report of even date attached
For NGC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
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abh Sindhu Somvir Sindhu
Director Divector
DIN: 02291158 DIN: 06680118

Firm Registration No.: 033401N/N500351 . 3

Date: 27-05- 2025



